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Questions from Site Walkthrough: 

How detailed to the design drawings need to be? 

Design drawings should be detailed enough that the Design/Build team’s engineer feels comfortable 

to Stamp/Sign the drawings.  We anticipate that the drawings submitted for review prior to 

construction would be complete enough such that another firm would be able to complete 

construction, including necessary culvert elevations, bearing elevations, bank slopes, construction 

details and shop drawings, as well as any additional information that would be required for a 

structure of similar size and scope.  A final set of stamped as built drawings will also be required.  

Please confirm the structure loading design parameters. 

The structure should be designed to HS-20 loading to accommodate the presence of regular passage 

of garbage trucks, school busses, snowplow trucks, and similar. 

Is there a required cord elevation for the structure specified? 

The contractor shall perform all final design elevations and sizes based on the ODOT and City of 

Independence standards referenced in the RFQ package. 

For streambank stabilization, will any sort of gabion baskets or similar be necessary? Did sizing 

calculations took into account the width of the existing stream after the culvert? 

As per EDG’s criteria documents Streambank stabilization consists of  “(Type B Rip Rap with Type C Rip 

Rap Infill in Voids)”. The contractor shall perform all final design for the culvert and streambank 

stabilization based upon their engineering calculations. 

Permitting Requirements 

The City of Independence requires the construction contractor to be registered with the City of 

Independence prior to starting any job (may potentially be waived); the City of Independence has a 

concrete permit application with site plan prior to starting work (may potentially be waived); the City 

of Independence requires a permit for work in the floodplain with plans and H&H modeling (may be  

waived in leu of reviewing the design builders drawings and modeling report). As per the Exhibit B:   

 Based on our analyses we recommend the following:  

• The culvert replacement shall be a precast reinforced concrete three-sided flat top or precast 

reinforced concrete arch section that completely spans the ordinary high-water mark (OHWM) 

o as to fall under US Army Corps of Engineers (USACOE) NW #3 Maintenance permit. NW#3 

does not require a Pre-Construction Notification (PCN). A recommended size estimate for 

replacing the existing conduits would be either a 24’ wide x 5’ tall for the precast reinforced 

concrete three-sided flat top or a 28’ wide x 6’ tall precast reinforced concrete arch section. 

• The design-build team should be responsible for a final design that provides a no-rise 

condition certification for the 1-percent annual chance flood since this culvert is located 

within a FEMA designated floodway. “ 
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Will the NEORSD require plan reviews? 

NEORSD only review projects that have 1-acre disturbance or greater.  It is believed that disturbed 

area will be less than 1-acre. 

Questions Submitted Via Email: 

As discussed at the pre-construction meeting, please forward a copy of the site survey and any existing 

structure plans. 

Available information can be found at the link below: 

https://u.pcloud.link/publink/show?code=kZRVCHVZgBHOu4EY5XVt7ITCUIh9k5DtSvI7 

Our designer has indicated major concerns with the hydraulic requirements for the LOMR 

requirement.  Can you please clarify the likelihood that this will be required, and/or why it is even 

shown as an alternate in the first place? 

The final design must include modeling to show no net rise.  Documentation/submittal from the 

design/build team will be an electronic H&H model, modeling report and backup calculations which 

will also include representation of the final design’s impact on floodplain elevation/location as per the 

City of Independence Floodplain permit. Neither a CLOMR OR LOMR will be required prior to 

construction as there will be no net rise for the final design.  The culvert replacement has the 

potential to REDUCE the impact to structures in the floodplain in this area. The city has requested a 

price for a LOMR if the final design will change the local floodplain’s impact to structures in the 

floodplain significantly. If the final design modeling does not show a significant change in floodplain 

impacts, the city may not wish to have a LOMR performed. The LOMR is an alternative item in the bid 

if it becomes necessary to submit. 

Please clarify the City’s expectations on whether the price submitted is considered a firm bid number 

or whether they recognize there will be some back and forth negotiations while the design elements 

are completed.  The inclusion of the GMP clause (Page 11/24, Line #7) leads us to believe the latter. 

It is anticipated that limited contract negotiations will be made while finalizing the GMP.  It is 

anticipated that the submitted price will be the contract value. 

As discussed onsite, please formally state that the final completion date will be Spring 2023, for 

plantings, site restorations, and the like.  Completing this work in December, as currently shown in the 

project plans, is unreasonable. 

The City has accepted that limited restoration and plantings may not occur until the Spring of 2023.  

Project closeout and retainage will be held until final completion.  The date for Substantial 

Completion remains as 12/31/2022. 

Please confirm that only the bidders who attended the walk-through will be considered for award of 

this project (Northstar, Independence Excavating, and Schirmer).   

Submissions that from teams and/or firms that did not attend the mandatory site walkthrough on 

May 17th, 2022 will be deemed to be non-responsive and will not be eligible for selection.  

https://u.pcloud.link/publink/show?code=kZRVCHVZgBHOu4EY5XVt7ITCUIh9k5DtSvI7


Answers to Contractor Questions 
  May 19, 2022 

Page 3 of 4 
 

 

Submissions will only be accepted for consideration from Northstar/DLZ, Independence Excavating/RE 

Warner, and Schirmer. 

Please confirm that a bid bond is not required with this initial proposal submittal (we recognize a bond 

will be required for construction).   

Bid bond is not required for submission of the RFQ 

We are very concerned about the limited time available to submit a proper response.  With a stated 

deadline of May 24th at 9:00 AM, that is essentially only 3 working days away, which is nowhere near 

enough time for a typical bid, let alone a design-build where the best solution has to be vetted, plus a 

full proposal written, and then costs determined.   

Please consider revising the due date to Friday, May 27th at 2:00 PM at the absolute earliest, and 

even that is pushing it hard.  Another week (June 3rd) would be more realistic.   

The Submission Deadline has been moved to Friday, May 27th, 2022 at 4:00 PM to allow for 

design/build teams to review Addendum #1 

The RFQ requires the contractor to complete the Letter of Map Revision (LOMR) as part of this project. 

Is the contractor also responsible for completing the Conditional Letter of Map Revision (CLOMR)?  

Based on the FEMA process, construction of the improvements shall not commence until CLOMR 

approval is obtained from FEMA which would likely not allow the project to be completed within the 

schedule specified in the contract documents. 

The final design must include modeling to show no net rise.  Documentation/submittal from the 

design/build team will be an electronic H&H model, modeling report and backup calculations which 

will also include representation of the final design’s impact on floodplain elevation/location as per the 

City of Independence Floodplain permit. Neither a CLOMR OR LOMR will be required prior to 

construction as there will be no net rise for the final design.  The culvert replacement has the 

potential to REDUCE the impact to structures in the floodplain in this area. The city has requested a 

price for a LOMR if the final design will change the local floodplain’s impact to structures in the 

floodplain significantly. If the final design modeling does not show a significant change in floodplain 

impacts, the city may not wish to have a LOMR performed. The LOMR is an alternative item in the bid.  

Who is responsible for the FEMA fees associated with these submittals? 

These fees will be paid either by the City of Independence, or as directly reimbursable upon 

acceptance and submission of the LOMR, if requested. 

The RFQ indicates that the project will be covered under the NWP #3 and that no PCN will be required 

since the proposed bridge can be constructed outside the limits of the OHWM.  The RFQ does not 

appear to define the OHWM, but does state that Hemlock Creek is flashy in nature.  Can the City 

confirm that the project will not require a PCN? 

The final design can be designed in conformance to the NWP #3 without PCN. We are not performing 

the final design, therefore cannot confirm that the final design will not require a PCN. We did not 

perform a topographic survey to determine the OHWM, but have obtained the regional H&H 
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modeling from NEORSD for this area. The existing NEORSD H&H modeling is attached or can be 

provided upon request by email to acroasmun@envdesigngroup.com 
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